
Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Mercher, 1 Chwefror 2012  

 

Amser: 
09:45 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Alun Davidson 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8639 
ES.comm@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon (09.45)  

2. Ymchwiliad i'r achos busnes dros un corff amgylcheddol - 
tystiolaeth gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy 
(09.45 - 10.45) (Tudalennau 1 - 5)  
E&S(4)-06-12 papur 1 

John Griffiths AC, Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy 
Matthew Quinn, Cyfarwyddwr, yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy   
Dave Clarke, Cynghorwr Technegol, Dyfodol Cynaliadwy 
Nigel Reader, Ymgynghorydd  

3. Papurau i'w nodi (10.45) (Tudalennau 6 - 7)  
Cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 18 Ionawr 

E&S(4)-03-12 cofnodion  

 
3a. Ymchwiliad i'r achos busnes dros un corff amgylcheddol - Tystiolaeth 
ysgrifenedig gan Gydffederasiwn Diwydiannau Coedwigoedd (Confor)  
(Tudalennau 8 - 15) 
E&S(4)-06-12 papur 2 
 

 
3b. Ymchwiliad i'r achos busnes dros un corff amgylcheddol - Tystiolaeth 
ysgrifenedig gan Blanhigfeydd Maelor Cyf  (Tudalennau 16 - 17) 
E&S(4)-06-12 papur 3 
 

 

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



3c. Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau - P-04-339 Gorfodi Safonau Lles 
Anifeiliaid yn y Diwydiant Ffermio Cwn Bach yn Ne-Orllewin Cymru  (Tudalennau 
18 - 19) 
E&S(4)-06-12 papur 4 
 

4. Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(vi) i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer eitem 5 (10.45)  

5. Ymchwiliad i'r achos busnes dros un corff amgylcheddol - trafod 
y dystiolaeth   



Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd 
 
E&S(4)-06-12 papur 1 
 
Ymholiad i’r Achos Busnes ar gyfer yr Un Corff Amgylcheddol – 
Papur gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy 
 
 
1. Pwrpas  
 
Mae’r papur hwn yn crynhoi cefndir, datblygiad a phrif gasgliadau’r 
achos busnes i greu Un Corff Amgylcheddol yng Nghymru.  Mae hefyd 
yn ceisio mynd i’r afael â rhai o’r prif feysydd sydd wedi’u  nodi yn y 
cylch gorchwyl sy’n cael eu nodi gan y Pwyllgor.    
 
2. Cyd-destun – Arolwg cam 1  
 
Roedd cyd-destun y gwaith wedi’i nodi’n wreiddiol mewn datganiad 
ysgrifenedig i Aelodau’r Cynulliad ym mis Gorffennaf 2010.  Roedd y 
datganiad yn nodi, er bod gwaith bellach ar y gweill i rannu 
gwasanaethau cymorth a gwasanaethau gweithredol rhwng Asiantaeth 
yr Amgylchedd Cymru, Cyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru a Chomisiwn 
Coedwigaeth Cymru, roedd angen edrych ar:     
 
“ac i drefniadau a swyddogaethau gael eu had-drefnu mewn ffordd 
fwy sylfaenol.  Y nod fyddai rheoli’r amgylchedd naturiol yng Nghymru 
mewn ffordd integredig ar sail ecosystemau gan roi’r gorau inni am 
ein harian.  Byd y gwaith hwn yn edrych ar swyddogaethau, gan 
gynnwys y costau a’r manteision posib o gyrff ar wahân  yng 
Nghymru, ac uno rhai neu pob un o’r cyrff cyflenwi, a daw adroddiad 
cychwynnol yn yr hydref.” .  
 
Cynhaliwyd arolwg felly i edrych ar rai o’r materion hyn ac argymell 
ffordd ymlaen.  Cynhaliwyd yr arolwg yn bennaf gan staff o’r tri chorff 
ond dan arweiniad swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru.  Cynhaliwyd y 
gwaith arolygu gan fwrdd y rhaglen, yn cynnwys cynrychiolwyr 
Llywodraeth Cymru a Phrif Weithredwr / Cyfarwyddwyr y tri corff.    
 
Ar wahân i hyn, bu Llywodraeth Cymru yn datblygu ac yn ymgynghori 
ar ei Fframwaith Amgylchedd Naturiol arfaethedig, ‘Cymru Fyw’.  
Roedd yr ymgynghoriad hwn yn holi barn ar nifer o faterion, gan 
gynnwys y ffordd orau o drefnu swyddogaethau a chyflawni’r gwaith 
sy’n cael ei gynnal ar hyn o bryd yng Nghymru neu i Gymru gan y ‘tri 
chorff’, CGC, Asiantaeth yr Amgylchedd Cymru a Chomisiwn 
Coedwigaeth Cymru.  Daeth yr ymgynghoriad i ben ar ddiwedd Rhagfyr 
2010 a bu’r ymatebion yn llywio casgliadau terfynol yr arolwg a’r 
cyngor i Weinidogion.   
 

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



Cafwyd yr adolygiad cychwynnol ym mis Ionawr 2011 ac mae ar gael ar 
wefan Llywodraeth Cymru.  Edrychodd yr arolwg ar chwe opsiwn, gan 
gynnwys dim newid, rhannu gwasanaethau, cyfuno dau gorff, a chreu 
corff newydd o’r tri ohonynt.   
 
Daeth yr arolwg i’r casgliad mai’r opsiwn oedd â’r posibilrwydd o 
gynnig y manteision a’r gwelliannau gorau o ran rheoli a chyflenwi 
polisïau amgylcheddol yn effeithiol oedd sefydlu un corff 
amgylcheddol yn cynnwys y tri sefydliad.   Roedd hefyd yn nodi’r tri 
risg pennaf oedd yn galw am asesu pellach; pensiynau, costau TGCh, a 
statws eithrio TAW.   
 
O ganlyniad, cyflwynodd y Gweinidog dros yr Amgylchedd, 
Cynaliadwyedd a Thai a’r Gweinidog Materion Gwledig Ddatganiad 
Ysgrifenedig i Aelodau’r Cynulliad ar Fframwaith yr Amgylchedd 
Naturiol ar 28 Ionawr 2011, pryd y cadarnhawyd ganddynt eu bod 
wedi gofyn i swyddogion gynnal gwaith mwy manwl ar yr opsiwn 
penodol o sefydlu un corff amgylcheddol. 
 
Cafodd casgliadau’r arolwg hwn, a’r broses gyffredinol, eu cyflwyno i’r 
Pwyllgor Cynaliadwyedd ar 17 Mawrth 2011.   
 
Fel llywodraeth, rydym wedi ei gwneud yn glir wedi hyn ein bwriad i 
greu un corff, yn ein maniffesto a’n rhaglen lywodraethu.   
 
3. Yr achos busnes cam 2  
 
3.1 Cwmpas a dull cyffredinol 
 
Roedd yr ail gam hwn o’r gwaith, a datblygu’r achos busnes, yn 
canolbwyntio ar yr opsiwn un corff amgylcheddol, gydag opsiwn 
gwrth-ffeithiol (neu waelodlin) yn seiliedig ar gael toriadau i’r gyllideb 
trwy ddatblygu’r agenda gwasanaethau wedi’u rhannu.  Cafodd dau 
opsiwn ychwanegol (y rhai mwyaf addawol o gam 1) eu rhoi ar restr fer 
a’u hystyried ymhellach – rhain oedd yr opsiynau CCW/FCW a 
EAW/CCW.   
 
Cafodd yr achos busnes ei ddatblygu gan Dîm y Rhaglen, gan gynnwys 
staff o Lywodraeth Cymru, EAW, CCW a FCW.  Roedd y pedwar 
sefydliad yn cael eu cynrychioli hefyd ar Fwrdd y Rhaglen oedd yn 
arwain gwaith y rhaglen, gan gynnwys goruchwylio datblygiad achos 
busnes.  Roedd Grŵp Llywio yn rhoi hefyd yn rhoi cyngor a chanllawiau 
strategol ar waith y rhaglen.  Roedd ei aelodau’n cynnwys chwe 
cyfarwyddwr anweithredol – dau yr un o’r EAW, CCW a FCW.      
 
Cafodd yr achos busnes ei gyflwyno ar ffurf model pum achos y 
Trysorlys , ar gais y Swyddog Cyfrifo.  Mae’r achos llawn, yn ogystal ag 
atodiadau ar gael ar wefan Llywodraeth Cymru.   
 

Tudalen 2



Mae’r achos busnes yn argymell ein bod yn mynd ymlaen â’r gwaith o 
greu corff newydd yn seiliedig ar swyddogaethau yr FCW, EAW a CCW.  
Mae’r Cabinet wedi derbyn yr argymhelliad hwnnw, a byddwn yn 
cyhoeddi ymgynghoriad yn cyflwyno manylion pellach ein cynigion, ac 
yn holi barn rhagor o bobl yn eu cylch, yn ystod mis Chwefror.  Byddaf 
yn ystyried canlyniadau’r ymgynghoriad hwn cyn llunio barn derfynol 
ar y ffordd ymlaen.   
 
3.2 Materion penodol 
 
Mae’r adrannau hyn yn rhoi crynodeb byr o rhai agweddau allweddol o 
ddatblygu’r achos busnes sy’n berthnasol i gylch gorchwyl y mae’r 
Pwyllgor wedi’i osod iddo ei hun.    
 
3.3 Cefnogi ‘Cymru Fyw’ 
 
Mae’r dull polisi a bennwyd yn Fframwaith yr Amgylchedd Naturiol yn 
rhan pwysig o’r cyd-destun ar gyfer creu un corff ond mae’n un o nifer 
o ffactorau sy’n cael eu hystyried yn yr achos busnes.   
 
Roedd y gwerthusiadau economaidd a strategol yn dangos mai’r 
opsiwn un corff oedd yr un oedd wedi’i alinio orau i gyflawni ‘Cymru 
Fyw’ yn ogystal â’i fod yn ennill sgôr uchel yn erbyn y meini prawf 
eraill a amlinellwyd yn yr achos busnes.   
 
Wrth inni ddatblygu achos busnes, mae timau’r un corff a Cymru Fyw 
wedi cydweithio’n agos, gan rannu llawer o’u trefniadau llywodraethu 
rhaglenni.  Rhoddodd Grŵp Llywio ar y cyd o weithwyr anweithredol 
gyngor ar y ddwy raglen, ac rwyf hefyd wedi sefydlu grŵp cyfeirio ar y 
cyd i gyflwyno barn y rhanddeiliaid.   
 
Mae ein dull polisi ‘Cymru Fyw’ wedi datblygu ymhellach, a byddwn yn 
cyhoeddi ein Papur Gwyrdd cyn bo hir ‘Cynnal Cymru Fyw’.  Byddwn yn 
cyhoeddi ymgynghoriad o’n cynigion ar gyfer un corff ym mis 
Chwefror fydd yn egluro’r aliniad hwn ymhellach.  Byddaf yn ceisio 
sicrhau bod y Pwyllgor hwn yn derbyn yr ymgynghoriad cyn gynted ag 
y bo’n ymarferol.  Rydym yn ystyried bod gan yr un corff swyddogaeth 
bwysig i ddatblygu a mireinio cyfeiriad y polisi a osodwyd yn y Papur 
Gwyrdd cyn Bil yr Amgylchedd sydd yn yr arfaeth.   
 
3.4 Manteision, Costau a Risgiau 
 
Cafodd y risgiau a’r manteision eu nodi’n gyntaf trwy weithdai a 
thrafodaethau rhwng staff a rhanddeiliaid.  Roedd y trafodaethau hyn 
yn eang iawn (gweler atodiad 2 yr achos busnes).  Er mwyn mesur y 
manteision a’r costau ymhellach, cafodd gwaith y cyrff ei torri i lawr i 
12 llif gwaith, gyda’r gwaith yn cael ei gyflawni gan weithgorau o 
ymarferwyr o’r tri chorff.  Cynhyrchwyd adroddiad (neu adroddiadau) 

Tudalen 3



gan bob tîm yn nodi’r manteision, y costau a’r risgiau, a chytunwyd ar 
yr adroddiad a’i lofnodi gan y tîm.   
 
Ble yr oedd angen hynny, comisiynwyd cyngor arbenigol i roi 
gwybodaeth ac amcangyfrifon; yn benodol ar TGCh a chostau pensiwn.  
Cafwyd amcangyfrifon hefyd gan EA ac FCGB ar gost gwahanu.   
 
Cafodd yr adroddiadau eu hadolygu a’u llofnodi gan Fwrdd y Rhaglen.  
Er mwyn bod yn fyrrach, cafodd y 12 adroddiad llif gwaith eu cyfuno’n 
ddau adroddiad cryno (wedi’u cynnwys yn yr atodiadau i’r achos 
busnes), yn cynnwys y gwasanaethau corfforaethol a’r gwasanaethau 
gweithredol.   
 
Mae’r achos busnes a’r atodiadau manwl yn delio â’r prif risgiau a 
nodwyd yn yr adroddiad cam 1, pensiynau, TGCh a statws TAW.  
Cafodd amryw o risgiau, dibyniaethau a materion eu nodi hefyd, fel 
sy’n cael ei grynhoi yn y prif adroddiad a’r atodiadau, yn ogystal â’r 
lliniaru arfaethedig.    
 
Mae Adran 7 yr achos busnes, a’r atodiad cysylltiedig, yn pennu’r 
achos rheoli ac yn crynhoi’r gwaith allweddol i gyflawni’r pontio.  Mae 
hyn yn cynnwys pecynnau gwaith i fynd ati i reoli risgiau allweddol, fel 
deddfwriaeth, TGCh ac enw da.    
 
Mae’r achos busnes yn mesur y risgiau ble yn briodol ac yn cynnwys 
£18.4 miliwn wrth asesu costau economaidd i ystyried y risgiau fel y 
posibilrwydd o’r prosiect yn gor-redeg, ar gyfer costau TGCh 
annisgwyl a cholli cynhyrchiant.  Mae’r ffigwr hwn yn ychwanegol i’r 
£50.3 miliwn o gostau a nodwyd.    
 
3.5 Sicrhau Ansawdd a Chymeradwyo 
 
Cyn cyflwyno (a chael cymeradwyaeth) gan fwrdd y rhaglen, cafodd yr 
achos busnes ei adolygu gan y tri chorff yng Nghymru, EA a FCGB a 
DEFRA.   
 
Yn fewnol, roedd hefyd yn destun adolygiad mewnol o fewn 
Llywodraeth Cymru, gan gynnwys gan economegwyr, cyllid ac 
arbenigwr achos busnes y trysorlys.    
 
Roedd yr achos busnes hefyd yn destun arolwg allanol manwl.  
Cynhaliwyd hwn gan unigolyn hynod brofiadol, sy’n Aelod o Fwrdd y 
Sefydliad Rheoli Morol, yn cadeirio pwyllgor archwilio Natural England 
ac yn Gyfarwyddwr Cyllid yn ystod y broses o greu yr Awdurdod 
Afonydd Cenedlaethol ac Asiantaeth yr Amgylchedd.   
 
Roedd ei adroddiad, sydd wedi’i atodi’n llawn, yn nodi rhai materion 
penodol fydd yn galw am eu rheoli’n ofalus wrth inni fynd yn ein 

Tudalen 4



blaenau.  Mae’r trefniadau hyn eisoes yn cael eu sefydlu.  Fodd 
bynnag, y casgliad cyffredinol yw:   
 
Yn dilyn fy adolygiad, fy marn cyffredinol yw fod yr achos busnes yn 
gredadwy, yn gadarn ac yn addas at y diben.   
 
Cafodd yr achos busnes ei gymeradwyo gan fwrdd y rhaglen, y 
Swyddog Cyfrifol Uwch a Chyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol Dyfodol 
Cynaliadwy fel swyddog cyfrifo, cyn iddo gael ei gyflwyno i mi.    
 
3.6 Y dull cyfreithiol a datblygu’r corff ymhellach   
 
Mae’n bosib i’r newidiadau sefydliadol yr ydym yn eu cynnig fod yn 
effeithiol trwy orchmynion a wnaethpwyd gan Weinidogion Cymru o 
dan y pwerau a roddwyd gan Ddeddf Cyrff Cyhoeddus 2011 (ar gael o 
www.legislation.gov.uk)   
 
Rwy’n cynnig y dylai’r corff newydd fod yn weithredol o’r 1 Ebrill 2013.  
Yna, rwy’n bwriadu gwahodd y Cynulliad i gyfuno a datblygu 
ymhellach ddeddfwriaeth yr un corff yn y Biliau Cynllunio ac 
Amgylchedd arfaethedig.   
 
Bydd manylion pellach y dull arfaethedig hwn a’n sail resymegol ar ei 
gyfer yn cael ei gynnwys yn yr ymgynghoriad sydd ar ddod.   
 
3.7 Camau Nesaf 
 
Yr union gam nesaf yw i ymgynghori ar ein cynigion.  Mae un rhaglen 
yn cael ei sefydlu i ddatblygu gwaith y rhaglen ‘Cymru Fyw’ a 
newidiadau yr un corff.  Bydd y dull cyfunol hwn yn sicrhau bod y ddau 
faes gwaith yn parhau wedi’u halinio’n llwyr.   
 
Mae’r gwaith ar gyflawni yn y dyfodol yn dechrau ar unwaith fel y gall 
swyddogion fynd ymlaen â’r gwaith pwysicaf o ran amseru, yn enwedig 
ar ddeddfwriaeth, parhad busnes, TG a phensiynau.  Bydd pob tîm yn 
cael adnoddau staffio o’r tri corff cyflawni ac yn cael eu rheoli gan 
Reolwr Rhaglenni Llywodraeth Cymru/tîm Swyddfa’r Rhaglen.  Cafodd 
y costau hyn eu cynnwys yn yr achos busnes.   
 
Er mwyn sicrhau bod y corff newydd yn weithredol ar 1 Ebrill 2013, 
rydym yn ystyried y bydd angen sefydlu ‘corff cysgodol’ o ddiwedd yr 
haf 2012.   
 
Unwaith y bydd y corff cysgodol wedi’i sefydlu, bydd y gwaith yn cael 
ei drosglwyddo’n raddol o’r rhaglen weithredu i’r corff cysgodol.   
 
 
John Griffiths AC 
Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy 

Tudalen 5



 

Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd 

 

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Senedd 
 

 

  
Dyddiad:  Dydd Mercher, 18 Ionawr 2012 

 

  
Amser:  10:15 - 12:00 

 

  

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: 
http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=cy_200002_18_01_2012&t=0&l=cy 

 
 

Cofnodion Cryno: 
 

   
Aelodau’r Cynulliad:  Dafydd Elis-Thomas (Cadeirydd) 

Mick Antoniw 
Rebecca Evans 
Russell George 
Vaughan Gething 
Llyr Huws Gruffydd 
Julie James 
William Powell 
David Rees 
Antoinette Sandbach 

 

  

   
Tystion:  Yr Athro Robert Lee, Athrofa Ymchwil Mannau 

Cynaliadwy, Prifysgol Caerdydd 
Yr Athro Terry Marsden, Athrofa Ymchwil Mannau 
Cynaliadwy, Prifysgol Caerdydd  
Dafydd Jarrett, NFU Cymru 
Bernard Llewellyn, NFU Cymru 
Rhian Nowell-Phillips, Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru 
Ben Underwood, Cymdeithas Tir a Busnesau Cefn Gwlad 

 
 

  

   
Staff y Pwyllgor:  Alun Davidson (Clerc) 

Catherine Hunt (Dirprwy Glerc) 
Nia Seaton (Ymchwilydd) 

 
  

 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon  
1.1 Ni chafwyd unrhyw ymddiheuriadau na dirprwyon. 
 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 6



2. Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(vi) i berderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer eitem 3  
2.1 Cytunodd y Pwyllgor ar y cynnig i wahardd y cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer eitem 3. 
 

3. Ymchwiliad i’r achos busnes dros Un Corff Amgylcheddol - Sesiwn 
friffio breifat gyda chynghorwyr arbenigol  
3.1 Cafodd Aelodau’r Pwyllgor eu briffio gan yr Athro Robert Lee a’r Athro Terry 
Marsden ar yr achos busnes dros gael un corff amgylcheddol i Gymru. 
 

4. Ymchwiliad i’r achos busnes dros Un Corff Amgylcheddol - 
Tystiolaeth gan sefydliadau ffermio a chefn gwlad  
4.1 Bu’r tystion yn ymateb i gwestiynau gan Aelodau’r Pwyllgor ar yr achos busnes 
dros gael un corff amgylcheddol i Gymru. 
 
TRAWSGRIFIAD  
 
 
Trawsgrifiad o’r cyfarfod.  
 

Tudalen 7



Environment and Sustainability Committee 
 
E&S(4)-06-12 paper 2 
 
Inquiry into the Business Case for a Single Environmental Body – Evidence 
from Confederation of Forest Industries (Confor) 

 

Confor: promoting forestry and wood is a membership organisation that promotes 
sustainable forestry and low-carbon businesses. Confor represents and supports 
members by helping build the market for wood and forest products, creating a 
supportive policy environment, and helping members to become more competitive 
and successful. 

Confor examined the pros and cons of the Single Body proposal and concluded that, on 
balance, it will be detrimental to the interests of the forestry and wood-using sector. 
There is sense in bringing EAW and CCW together, but the role and functions of FCW are 
very different. 
 
Loss of access to shared FC resources 
FCW operates as an independent, fully devolved entity reporting to Welsh ministers, while 
benefiting from collaborative activity with England and Scotland, as well as Westminster-
funded resources such as Forest Research (FR), statistics and forest expertise for 
standard setting. 
  
If FCW were separated from the rest of FC, then it is near certain that the England and 
Scotland arms would merge with departments in their respective countries and shared 
functions would be significantly downgraded or lost in the near future. FR is widely 
respected within the sector. Statistics/production forecasting helps underpin investment 
in markets for wood and forest expertise is crucial in ensuring there is a standard for 
forest management that has a basis in sustainability. 
  
This shared resource has played a crucial role in the fight against Phytophthora 
ramorum. Any merger process will be extended over time and result in staff resource 
being diverted, just at a time when we need it to be active and available. 
  
Environmental regulation 
Members occasionally complain about poor service from the FC, and the debacle over 
Glastir has not been an advert for competence. At the same time, FC staff have at least 
some understanding of forestry and the challenge of making that financially sustainable. 
  
EAW and CCW are environmental regulators, and are used to limiting the negative 
environmental impact of industry rather than stimulating activity. They will dominate the 
new body and it will quickly become focused narrowly on environmental protection 
through regulation. In five years’ time, instead of a woodland officer visiting a forest it 
will be an ex-CCW manager who is not interested in how to make any money out of the 

Eitem 3a

Tudalen 8



forest. 
  
By the time the new body realises that it is actually destroying the environmental benefits 
of well-managed woodland, it will be too late. 
  
What we need is FCW taking control of the agenda and delivering a workable scheme, not 
spending the next few years being diverted by integration into a new body. 
  
Damage to wood-using businesses 
Businesses along the supply chain including agents, woodland managers and the mills 
have all expressed deep concern that the merger will undermine investment in wood 
processing. Views are mixed on the impact FCW has on timber prices, but it is clear that 
the merger will threaten investment, which in turn damages markets for wood. 
  
Loss of influence by the forestry sector 
Since devolution, forestry has increased its visibility at a political level. This is partly 
because forestry was fully devolved and the FCW were able react to a Welsh agenda and 
partly because the private sector realised it needed to promote the role of forestry in a 
new green economy through a new representative body Confor. 

If there is no department for forestry, and especially if it is submerged into an 
environmental regulator, the understanding of the importance of forestry will diminish 
significantly. There is a risk that EAW and CCW will dominate the SEB. Forestry and wood 
will be downgraded. 
  
The business case for the merger fails to understand the nature of the sector or its 
interests. Any concerns which are noted are quickly skipped over and any potential 
financial costs are promptly forgotten. It is a ‘best case’ scenario that focuses on the 
benefits of merging EAW and CCW, with a narrow perspective that FCW is similar, which it 
is not. 
 
Economics facts  

• FC Wales (FCW) manages by far the largest single rural business in Wales. 
• FCW with its visitor centres and mountain biking operates the largest commercial 

outdoor recreation business in Wales. 
• The public forests are the largest single visitor destination in Wales after the Welsh 

coast, attracting about 80% of all visitors to woodlands. 
• As a result of these services and commercial activities the public forests are of 

fundamental importance to rural tourism, which is either the top or 2nd largest 
economic sector in Wales. The facilities and opportunity for recreation represented 
by the forests are the platforms on which many touristic businesses are built. 

• In addition the public forests produce timber, a renewable material that not only 
generates considerable income for the Welsh Government directly but also 
supports a large and modern wood processing sector that is competitive with the 
best in the world. The commercial capital that allowed this was made available 

Tudalen 9



because of long-term guarantees of supply by FCW, guarantees that are not 
available from the private sector. 

 

The Business Case Analysis 
  
A The strategic case 

1. The SEB is to be set up primarily to implement the Natural Environment Framework 
(NEF). But the NEF, as currently proposed, has the following key weaknesses which 
undermine the case for the SEB.  

• its detailed roles have still to be defined and it therefore makes little sense to form 
a SEB to implement a yet undefined set of functions 

• its thinking is dominated  by environmental considerations and it largely ignores 
economic and social drivers which are arguably much more significant for those 
managing and operating in the rural sector 

• it speaks repeatedly of an integrated approach and integrated delivery of the 
management of the natural environment without explaining what this means in 
practice 

 
2. Many claims are made of the SEB’s benefits (table 1) without providing convincing 

evidence of how these will be realised. They are all speculative. 
 

3. Several references are made to external stakeholder consultation eg para 2.3, but 
it’s unclear how far and how seriously these inputs were taken into account.  The 
strong opposition by the forestry sector to including FCW in the merger seems to 
have been completely ignored. 

 
4. Several claims are made that the SEB will strengthen the autonomy of decision 

making in Wales eg paras 2.12.2 and 2.13.2. In the case of forestry, FCW is already 
autonomous and the inclusion of forestry in these comments is disingenuous. 

 
5. Expenditure outside Wales and reinvestment of savings in Wales para 2.13.2. FCW 

expenditure in Scotland and England is only a small % of the £23m. Forest 
Research already has a research station in Wales which focuses on research 
priorities for Wales. FCW also commissions studies concerned with Welsh 
questions. I suspect the points in these paragraphs relate primarily to the EA and it 
is wrong to imply they apply equally to FCW.  

 
6. References are also made to the importance of partnerships for SEB and it is 

implied these need strengthening. para 2.6  FCW has well developed partnerships 
which play an integral part in delivering Woodlands for Wales. 

 
7. The descriptions of the roles of the SEB focus on regulatory and planning 

functions. No mention is made of the benefits to SEB of commercial operations eg 
FCW timber production, recreation services and wind farm developments 

 

Tudalen 10



8. Farming and fishing, the largest rural industries, are the responsibility of a 
different WG ministry.  How will a SEB improve regulatory control over these 
industries compared with the present situation? 
 

B The economic case 
The main problem with this section is that we are expected to take the figures on trust, 
not withstanding the peer review by Mr Reader. Although the review process is described 
it is impossible to understand how the estimates were derived and the annexes throw no 
further light on this. The following points raise serious questions about the conclusion 
that option 4 gives the best economic outcome. 
 

1. Table 4 p 56 show non-cash realisable benefits but gives no explanation of what 
these are. They are not shown separately in annex 8.  

 
2. Annex 8 shows benefit calculations for each option. The para headed “Limitations” 

hardly fills one with confidence that the figures are meaningful. 
 

3. In option 4 the largest benefits (cost savings) come from row 2 “Operational-
technical advice, strategy and guidance planning” and row 6 “Operational- field 
workforce including reserve, forest and asset management” (Cumulative savings of 
£64m out of a total of £158m) How do these arise eg in the case of FCW what cuts 
are envisaged and how will FCW programmes be delivered with progressively 
reduced expenditure on forest operations? 

 
4. A comparison of benefits for options 2 (CCW+EA) and 4 (FCW+CCW+EA) in annex 

8 show that almost half the increased benefits claimed for option 4 over option 2 
over the project life ( £17m out of £37m) arise in row 6 ie savings on field 
workforce operations.  No details are given of where the savings originate (ie in 
CCW, EA, FCW) but as option 2 excludes FCW the implication is that these 
additional savings will occur in FCW. Is this the case and if so how will existing 
FCW programmes be delivered?  

 
5. Qualitative benefits scoring para 3.7.1 and risk appraisal para 3.8.  These would 

have been more convincing if external evaluators had been used. It could be 
argued that as the people who did this were intimately involved in the SEB 
programme they were inevitably biased.  
Sensitivity analysis para 3.10 and table 12. The margins between options 2 and 4 
are small when seen against: 
• the acknowledged approximations of the benefit calculations (see annex 8) 
• the 10 year time scale 
• the higher risk attached to option 4 than option 2  
• also if the non-cash realisable benefits are omitted (£19m for option 2 and 

£31m for option 4) from the total net benefits the margins between options 2 
and 4 narrow and the sensitivity % for 2 over 4 will fall. 

 

Tudalen 11



The economic analysis fails to provide a convincing case for preferring option 4 over 
option 2. 
 
C The commercial case 

1. Human Resources para 4.2.1. An all-Wales pension system might hinder staff 
transferability across the UK.  This would be highly undesirable. 

 
2. IT para 4.2.3   
• It reports that the IT workstream recommended a figure of £74.3m and that this 

was incorporated in the business case. I cannot see how this figure is derived from 
appendix 9 (p118) where IT capital costs total £14.3m and revenue costs £22.2m 
(total £36.6m). Where is the balance of £37.7m? 

• The difference in IT costs between option 2 (p116) and option 3 (p 117)suggest 
the overwhelming cost of IT is for the EA 

• I think it’s important that the new IT system should interface easily with FCGB 
systems and presumably also England’s EA system 

• It is absolutely clear that failure to deliver a working IT system on time will 
seriously jeopardise the project.  The record of public sector IT systems doing this 
is very poor. Is this risk realistically accounted for? 

 
3. Charging systems para  4.3.4  Where is the revenue generated by FCW (timber 

sales, recreation revenue etc) shown? At the moment this offsets FCW expenditure. 
Will this continue to be shown as income earned by forestry or subsumed into the 
SEB budget? It’s desirable that it is clearly identified as income earned from 
forestry activities. 

 
D Financial case. 

1. Annex 18 section 4 sources of funding (p204). This has some revealing 
information.  In option 4 cash realisable benefits from FCGB (does this mean FCW?) 
total £13.6m just 10% of total cash realisable benefits. It indicates that inclusion of 
FCW is marginal to the whole case.  

 
Overall conclusions 

• The report provides a far from convincing case for including FCW in the SEB 
• Virtually no disaggregated financial information is given to show exactly where (ie 

from FCW, EA, CCW) benefits arise or costs are incurred 
• Several assertions are made which clearly do not apply to FCW (eg the autonomy 

argument). This is misleading. 
 
 
 

The New Body 
The Minister has decided to proceed with the creation of a new body. While disappointed 
with the decision, the forestry sector will be proactive in helping shape this new 
organisation. Confor and the Wales Forest Business Partnership are organising an 
industry briefing event on 9th February in Newtown. The aim of the event is to enable 

Tudalen 12



companies, individuals and organisations to respond to the forthcoming government 
consultation. 

The Minister has confirmed his commitment to the Welsh Government’s Strategy 
“Woodlands for Wales” and in particular to a competitive and integrated forest sector as 
part of the Government’s sustainable development principle. Forestry Commission Wales 
has been the lead organisation taking forward the strategy. 

The delivery of Woodlands for Wales must not be jeopardised by the merger of FCW with 
the Environment Agency (EA) and Countryside Council for Wales (CCW) into the new Body.  
 
To guarantee the continuation and future development of these forestry benefits the 
following safeguards should be embedded. 
 
1. Guiding principles 
Economic and social objectives must have equal weight as environmental objectives in the 
guiding principles.  The emphasis in the Natural Environment Framework (NEF) as 
described in “Living Wales” is overwhelmingly on environmental considerations to the 
virtual exclusion of economic and social factors as guiding principles. If economic and 
social objectives are not given due weight, the new body’s decisions will seriously 
damage the rural sector. 
 
2. Definitions 

Words such as “Natural Resources”, “Environment”, “Natural Environment”, 
“Sustainable Development” need to be clearly defined.  

 
3. Policies for Welsh woodlands 
The Welsh government’s forestry strategy “Woodlands for Wales” (2010) has wide support 
across the forestry sector. It should be adopted as the blueprint for the future of forestry 
in Wales. 
 
4. Nomenclature 
The word Forestry (or Forests or Woodlands) should be included in the title for the new 
body.  Virtually all governments in Europe have a Forestry ministry or agency.  The 
absence of any reference to forests in the title will undermine the high international 
reputation of Welsh forests and forestry. 
 
5. Links across the UK 
Existing links to UK/GB forestry bodies must be maintained as these benefit Wales. The 
most important of these are: 

• Forest Research (the research agency of FCGB which serves the interests of 
all countries) 

• Statistics, in particular production forecasting 
• Forestry standards (the UK Forestry Standard sets out standards for forest 

management required to meet international treaty obligations) and statistics 

Tudalen 13



• Plant health regulations (principally measures to prevent the importation 
and spread of plant pathogens).  These are mainly administered by DEFRA 
 

6. Governance 
The Minister must not underestimate the difficulty of the task of bringing three 
organisations together with such different cultures. The driver for change must be to 
create an organisation better than the sum of its parts.  
 
The appointment of a Chief Executive with a track record of successful change 
management is essential. The culture of the new organisation needs to move away from 
regulation “no, you can’t” to enabling “let’s make it happen”. Internal communication 
procedures will need to be established early. There needs to be a change audit process 
involving external users where structural issues can be identified and rectified rapidly. 
  
There must be a clear organisational structure for managing the current assets of FCW. 
There should be a Head of Forestry who champions the importance and needs of the 
forestry sector within the sustainable development principle. S/He must be a director of 
the new body.  
The two positions of Forestry Commissioners for Wales should be retained and they 
should be non-executive directors of the new body. This will ensure senior level links 
with UK forestry.  
 
At the field level, officers must have expertise in the area they are working in. Currently 
woodland owners/managers have to deal with officers from all three organisations. This 
can be simplified. An appeals process which is clear, transparent and with defined 
timelines for resolution will be necessary. 
 
7. Partnerships within Wales 
Successful implementation of the NEF will require active participation and commitment by 
the private and voluntary sectors which own and manage most rural land in Wales. FCW 
has an established network of partner organisations which are already actively involved in 
delivering the policies in “Woodlands for Wales”. These partnerships should be retained. 
 
8. External advice 
The new body should have an external advisory body on forests and woodlands to reflect 
stakeholders’ views. The current Woodland Strategy Advisory Panel is a possible model. 
 
9. Professional career structure 
A UK wide career structure for forestry professionals should be retained. All countries 
benefit from cross-border staff movements. 
 
10. Commercial activities 
The new body must continue with the current commercial activities of FCW in particular 
timber production. These provide income which meets approx 50% of FCW expenditure. 
They will also ensure that the new body is kept abreast of economic and commercial 

Tudalen 14



trends affecting the forestry sector. The commercial skills, knowledge and acumen of 
FCW staff must not be lost. 
 
11.  Finance 
Income and expenditure related to forestry activities in the new body must be transparent 
and not hidden within consolidated accounts for the new body. In particular revenues 
earned from timber sales, recreation services and other sources must be clearly identified 
and should be ring-fenced for use on forest/woodland related activities. 
 

Kath McNulty 
National Manager for Wales 
January 2012 
 

Tudalen 15



  

 
 

Environment and Sustainability Committee 
 
E&S(4)-06-12 paper 3 
 
Inquiry into the Business Case for Single Environmental Body – Evidence from 
Maelor Forest Nurseries Ltd 
 
 
To assess whether the business case put forward for the creation of a single 
environment body takes sufficient account of the broad outcomes set out in the 
Natural Environment Framework. 
 
Sustainable development is the central organising principle of the NEF.  (We assume the 
basic aims of the NEF will not alter from the plans already shared when the Green Paper is 
published on Jan 30th.)  The business case does appear to support this principle, however 
it is the details that will matter; whether every employee of the new SEB will have 
sustainable development ‘delivering positive environmental change, not just conserving 
what we have’ (John Griffiths, 2011) as their common goal.  Conservation has a role within 
environmentalism, but if Wales is to truly aim towards sustainable development (in order 
to maximise the delivery of ecosystem services and to reduce its dependency on imports), 
the new body should understand the difference. 
 
The business case does state that all project managers involved in the transition will be 
asked to ‘act in the best interests of SEB Wales regardless of past affiliations and 
moralities’.  However, our concern is that conflict will inevitably occur due to the broad 
nature of the role the SEB will play.   
 
Will the SEB really manage ALL aspects of the Welsh Natural Environment?  For example, 
farming and fishing?  The current Glastir vs FCW influence on forestry is challenging, often 
producing difficulties and we are concerned that this does not continue to occur.  
 
Forestry in Wales is a vital rural industry because it employs 18,500 people (directly and 
indirectly), and contributes over £841million to the Welsh economy (CEBR, 2006).  The 
proportion of total country GVA (gross value added) generated in the forest industries is 
larger in Wales (2.1%) than anywhere else in the UK (Scotland second highest with 1.1%; UK 
average 0.7%). 
 
However, this economic significance is based on unsustainable harvesting and planting in 
recent years; the conifer area in Wales has shrunk by 13,000 ha since 2001.  This 
represents a loss of approximately 5 million tonnes of commercial timber which is not 
being replaced.  At the same time the area of broadleaf woodland has been increased by 
8,000 ha; this is unlikely to ever produce any value except for fuel wood.  There is overall 
a net woodland loss of 5,000 ha (Welsh Assembly Government, 2011).   
 
We are currently planting 200 ha / yr compared to the target of 5,000 ha per year set by 
Welsh Government in 2010.  
 
In addition to the economical benefits, forestry alone could abate half of Wales’ annual 
CO

2
 emissions  by 2050, if Wales achieves its carbon reduction targets (Read et. al., 2009).  

 
To analyse whether the business case takes sufficient accounts of the potential risks 
associated with the creation of a single environment body including: 
 
- Financial and economic risks, 
Freeing resources by minimising duplication is a primary reason for creating a new SEB 
but it will not happen automatically.  Other options should be considered e.g. in forestry; 
planting applications could be initially approved by meeting UK Forestry Standards, which 
comply with many international forestry certification standards.  Any special issues on the 
site would be identified and appropriate action taken. 

Eitem 3b

Tudalen 16



  

 
 

 
Does Forest Research count as a ‘core activity best delivered once for the whole of the 
UK’?  (e.g. flood forecasting and emissions trading).  If the SEB intends to buy in Forest 
Research skills, has this contribution been costed for the private sector in Wales as well as 
public sector?  How will private businesses access Forest Research resources? 
 
-Performance risks,  
 
Our main worry, as already stated, is that overall performance may well be compromised 
by conflicts of interest within the SEB.  This is currently the case between the existing 
bodies (e.g. Bryn Brawd proposed planting scheme attached).  We feel the current lack of 
structure presented in the business case means these conflicts of interest could continue.  
Although the business case repeatedly acknowledges this risk, there are no detailed 
solutions (e.g. prioritising interests, conflict resolution protocols) explained hence our 
concern.  What or who will decide the outcome of internal conflicts?    
This concern is particularly pressing to us as we believe forestry will be overlooked 
despite its sustainable economic potential as described previously. Our beliefs in this area 
are drawn from current experience of forestry in Wales being focused on recreation and 
conservation with productive forestry on the margins. Many of the larger charitable 
organisations are able to voice opinions on where they feel policy direction should focus. 
This can lead to policy being focused on these areas and the bigger picture (i.e. 
sustainable economic development for Wales) being missed.  
We raised our concerns with Lord Dafydd Elis-Thomas during his visit to the nursery on 
January 6th 2012, and they are summarised in the booklet presented. 
 
- Accountability and transparency risks 
 
We feel there is currently a lack of clarity regarding the type of body that will be created, 
its exact aims when in operation, and the procedures by which it will achieve those aims.   
 
- Reputational risks. 
 
We don’t foresee any problems providing common goals are met transparently.  Any 
improvement in the meeting of goals from the current situation (e.g. in terms of meeting 
planting targets) provides an improvement to reputation. 
 
To assess whether the business case take sufficient account of the views of key 
stakeholders affected by the creation of a single environment body. 
 
As a company employing ~40 full time staff, we have had the resources to attend many 
consultation meetings and feel we have had adequate opportunity to develop and express 
our viewpoints.  80% of forestry businesses employ <10 people and therefore are 
relatively isolated from political events and struggle to contribute effectively to 
consultation processes.  This is particularly evident in comparison to larger organisations 
more practiced and effective at these processes. 
In many cases, the business case does not go into enough detail to determine whether 
views expressed were taken into account.   
 
REFERENCES 

 

CEBR (2006) The economic contribution of forestry to the UK economy.  Report to ConFor and the 
Forestry Commission.  Centre for Economics and Business Research Ltd, London. 
 
Griffiths, J. (2011) The Natural Environment Framework ‘A Living Wales’.  Written statement by the 
Welsh Government, June 2011. 
 
Welsh Assembly Government(2011). Woodland for Wales indicators March 2011 
<http://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/WoodlandsforWalesIndicatorsWAG2011.pdf/$FILE/Woodlandsfor
WalesIndicatorsWAG2011.pdf > accessed 21.12.11.   

 

Tudalen 17



!

!"#$%&"'(")*+",*-./)+$"+0$1$)2*3&''$))((

!4-56789:8;<*=+=(%*6Eitem 3c

Tudalen 18



Tudalen 19


	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i'r achos busnes dros un corff amgylcheddol - tystiolaeth gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
	3 Papurau i'w nodi
	3a Ymchwiliad i'r achos busnes dros un corff amgylcheddol - Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan Gydffederasiwn Diwydiannau Coedwigoedd (Confor)
	3b Ymchwiliad i'r achos busnes dros un corff amgylcheddol - Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan Blanhigfeydd Maelor Cyf
	3c Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau - P-04-339 Gorfodi Safonau Lles Anifeiliaid yn y Diwydiant Ffermio Cwn Bach yn Ne-Orllewin Cymru

